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Aberdeen Harbour is Europe’s 

premier marine support centre 

for the oil and gas industry and 

the main commercial port serving 

North East Scotland.

OUR PURPOSE 
TO CREATE PROSPERITY 
FOR GENERATIONS



The extent to which Aberdeen 
Harbour Board has embraced 
this challenge is evident in the 
£200 million of investment in 
modernised facilities undertaken 
over the last two decades, but 
now it is even more apparent 
for all to see, as the first 
structural elements of our  
£350 million South Harbour 
expansion become visible in 
the Nigg Bay landscape. 

Indeed, the term ‘improvement’ 
could be viewed as inadequate 
when describing the 
transformational effect South 
Harbour will have; the opportunity 
that it will afford our existing 
customers, and our ability to 
attract new ones. The development 
of such a large-scale marine 
infrastructure project cannot  
have come at a more opportune 
time for the region when,  
despite an improving economic 
outlook, the ability to generate 
economic activity through the 
rejuvenation of existing markets, 
and the diversification into new 
areas of business, is vital.

This review provides us with a 
great means by which we can not 
only detail the scale of the South 
Harbour construction work 
underway, but also the range of 
activity that the existing Harbour 
is currently generating. It is down 
to the durability and ingenuity of 
our customers during 2017 that 
the port can report comparatively 
healthy levels of activity for the

period. The 6,775 vessel arrivals 
that took place, represented not 
only a 5% increase compared 
with 2016, but also the first 
increase in vessel arrival numbers  
since 2014. Although vessel 
tonnage did not achieve the  
same feat, it reduced by just  
2% (at 24,880,849 tonnes), 
compared with the previous year.

The decrease in cargo tonnage 
was also tempered, with 
3,790,767 tonnes representing a 
3.9% decrease, compared with 
2016. The relatively healthy 
performance indicated in these 
figures reflects sterling work by 
our customers to address the 
recent energy sector downturn 
and make themselves fit for  
the future.

Along with the work of our 
customers, our own Board has 
made a significant contribution to 
the success of the port in 2017, 
and my fellow non-executives on 
the Aberdeen Harbour Board 
have provided valuable support 
throughout the year. I would like 
to welcome John Brebner to the 
Board. His extensive experience 
at a senior level in the finance 
sector complements the suite of 
skills already in place. I would 
also like to thank Malcolm Laing, 
who provided us with six years of 
unstinting service before 
stepping down in December. 

I would like to thank our 
hard-working staff for their 
continued and valued contribution, 

and their real commitment to 
safe working practices, whilst  
our thanks also goes to the staff 
of Dragados UK, our principal 
contractors on the expansion 
project, and to the many local 
suppliers who are playing a  
critical role in progressing this  
vital development.

I would also like to pay particular 
thanks to our wide range of 
stakeholders, whose continued 
support for our work has been 
instrumental in its success. The 
Harbour’s Community Action 
Fund enters its fifth year in 2018 
and total sponsorship contribution, 
since its inception in 2014, is 
likely to exceed £500,000 this 
year, having supported more than 
40 different community groups. 
The Board is fully committed to 
this work and we will continue to 
do all that we reasonably can to 
support such groups within our 
local communities.

That the last twelve months has 
witnessed great change for 
Aberdeen Harbour would seem 
obvious, but a particular transition 
warrants singular attention.  
The retirement of Colin Parker 
from the role of Chief Executive 
took place in February this year. 
After over 30 years at the 
Harbour Board, Colin has left a 
legacy of improvement of which 
we all continue to benefit, and 
my thanks to him is without 
reservation. We wish Colin a  
long and enjoyable retirement

and look forward to updating  
him on the progress of the South 
Harbour development that he was 
so instrumental in instigating. 

In taking over the reins from 
Colin, Michelle Handforth brings 
considerable commercial and 
operational experience and is 
therefore extremely well 
equipped to contend with the 
challenges of the Chief Executive 
role. I look forward to working 
with Michelle and to the exciting 
year ahead for the port.

ALISTAIR MACKENZIE 
Chairman, June 2018
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Chairman’s Statement

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT IS PERHAPS A RATHER OVERUSED TERM IN BUSINESS.   

FOR TRUST PORTS, HOWEVER, IT IS THEIR VERY RAISON D’ÊTRE. THE CONTINUAL 

MODERNISATION AND ENHANCEMENT OF THE FACILITIES PROVIDED FOR THE BENEFIT 

OF CUSTOMERS AND STAKEHOLDERS IS ONE OF THE PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARDS THAT OVERSEE TRUST PORTS. 
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What is very apparent to me, 
since taking up the post, is that 
Aberdeen Harbour Board and 
its customers are dynamic, 
forward-facing organisations, 
with ambitious plans and 
aspirations which, when 
combined, have the potential 
to make an even greater 
contribution to the local, 
regional and Scottish economy. 

In the existing ‘North’ Harbour 
the Board continues to provide 
quality infrastructure and services 
to our existing customers, 
and these features have been 
successful in attracting 
increasingly diverse activity.

An agreement totalling 24 years’ 
worth of marine support for 
Vattenfall’s European Offshore 
Wind Deployment Centre, off the 
Aberdeen coast, took physical 
form during the year, when  
work was completed on a 
state-of-the-art access jetty on 
Commercial Quay. The jetty will 
provide a shore base for the 
operations and maintenance 
vessels that will service the 
facility for decades to come.

The Harbour’s decommissioning 
activity also increased in scale 
during 2017. This included nine 
large-scale shipments for 
Maersk’s Janice Decommissioning 
Project, including two subsea  
mid water arches, weighing 
around 100 tonnes each, 
transiting through the port.

Large-scale shipments were  
the order of the day in August, 
when a massive 285 tonne 
pressure test chamber transferred 
in through the port bound for  
the new Balmoral Subsea Test 
Centre on Wellington Road.

The port also received shipments 
of refuse-derived waste (RDW) 
for the first time during the year, 
bound for Norway, whilst 50,000 
tonnes of aggregate was imported 
on behalf of the Aberdeen  
Western Peripheral Route project.

Significant focus, however,  
was maintained on our existing 
commercial and oil and gas 
activities, whilst the Harbour 
Expansion Construction Project 
understandably dominated  
our working landscape.

The South Harbour Project,  
which commenced in spring 2017 
– fulfilling a target schedule that 
the port set back in 2014  
– progressed significantly  
within 2017. 

Our principal contractor, 
Dragados UK completed  
the installation of work 
compounds, constructed over 
200 metres of North Breakwater, 
and ensured that the sizeable 
Accropode Manufacturing  
Facility became a feature of  
the Gregness skyline. 

Progress, however, will gain  
real pace in 2018 with 
recommencement of work

on the North Breakwater, 
commencement of work on  
the South Breakwater and the 
arrival of the first caissons,  
which will indicate that first  
work in development of the  
West Quay. 

A significant amount of dredging 
has also been successfully 
completed and our Visitor Centre 
opened in January 2018, which 
has proved popular with the 
public, local schools and interest 
groups alike.  

The Visitor Centre has a range  
of displays which illustrate not 
only the community benefit of 
the project, but also the scale  
of the project in hand, and the 
game-changing facilities that  
the new harbour will provide. 

The increase in water depth  
of up to 14.2 metres (MHWS) 
and 1,400 metres of quay,  
a vast 600 metres of which will  
have heavy-lift capabilities,  
and 125,000 metres of lay-down 
area, will allow Aberdeen to 
welcome significantly up-scaled 
decommissioning projects.  
Our sponsorship of the Decom 
North Sea Conference during 
the year allowed us the 
opportunity to highlight the 
potential for these incredible  
new facilities to the industry.

The new port will also be  
able to accommodate cruise 
vessels almost twice the  
length of those currently visiting

the port. Our work with  
Scottish Enterprise and 
VisitAberdeenshire, as part of  
the new ‘CruiseAberdeenshire’ 
organisation, began to bear  
fruit in 2017. 

A series of ‘Get Ready for Cruise’ 
workshops were held with a  
wide range of interested parties, 
including visitor attractions, retail 
groups and transport providers, 
and a Business Opportunities 
Guide was published. All of this 
work is designed to help the city  
and region make the most of this 
fantastic opportunity. 

All of these achievements would 
not be possible without the 
support of our staff, customers, 
stakeholders and partners,  
who have continued to support 
our work. I would also like to 
express the Harbour Board’s 
thanks to my predecessor,  
Colin Parker, who retired earlier 
this year. We are all very 
conscious of the legacy he has 
created and Colin’s contribution 
to Aberdeen Harbour Board, and 
to the city and region, is to be 
both recognised and celebrated.

MICHELLE HANDFORTH 
Chief Executive, June 2018

Chief Executive's Report

TO TAKE UP A NEW ROLE IN ANY ORGANISATION IS BOTH CHALLENGING AND EXCITING, 

BUT WHEN THAT ORGANISATION IS THE OLDEST EXISTING BUSINESS IN THE UK, WITH A 

HISTORY OF ALMOST 900 YEARS, AND HAS A £1.5 BILLION ANNUAL IMPACT ON THE  

LOCAL ECONOMY, THE SCALE OF THE OPPORTUNITY IS CONSIDERABLE.



 

OPERATING A TRUST PORT

The duty of Trust Board members and staff 
is to “hand it [the port] on in the same or 
better condition to succeeding generations. 
This remains the ultimate responsibility of the 
Board, and future generations remain the 
ultimate stakeholder.”* In other words, it is 
the role of the Board members, and those 
working for the organisation, to safeguard and 
improve the port so that it continues to flourish.

A Trust Port differs from a privately owned port 
in that it has no shareholders who require a dividend, 
instead all profit or surpluses made from Trust 
Port operations are reinvested into the operation, 
maintenance and administration of the port.

There are approximately 100 Trust Ports in  
the UK, and Trust Port status has proven to be  

a highly successful model for Aberdeen, since 
becoming a trust in 1961. It allows the Harbour 
to operate in a commercial environment with 
no direct public funding, but also enables it to 
compete in the open market with private and 
local authority-owned facilities. 

Continuous improvement

A long-term view is at the heart of everything 
we do at Aberdeen Harbour. We are 
committed to constantly improving and 
modernising harbour assets, services and 
infrastructure for the benefit of all our 
stakeholders. Major infrastructure projects  
can be undertaken with greater confidence 
and often with greater clarity than in other 
areas of the private sector. A Trust Port is

also free from shareholder pressure and, 
traditionally, Aberdeen Harbour has refrained 
from increasing harbour rates above inflation 
unless it has had a specific harbour-related 
improvement reason for doing so.

Stakeholders

There are many stakeholders of a Trust Port, 
playing an intrinsic role in operational matters 
and also shaping how the port is perceived in 
the local community. Stakeholders have a 
crucial role to play in driving Aberdeen 
Harbour forward. By working together, the 
Board and stakeholders can deliver a vibrant, 
prosperous port that will provide a bright and 
secure future for many generations to come.

A Trust Port is an independent statutory body, created by an Act of Parliament. As such, it is not 
controlled by a local authority, nor is it a private business. Instead, it is run by an independent board,  
for the benefit of its stakeholders, and governed by its own local legislation. 

*(Modern Trust Ports for Scotland – a guide to good governance).

ABERDEEN MANAGEMENT TEAM

CHRIS BAIN
External Relations Director

KEITH YOUNG
Engineering Director

MICHELLE HANDFORTH
Chief Executive

JEFF GASKIN
Harbour Master

JAMES BELL
Finance Director

MATT NORTH
Commercial Director

“ When we combine the great   
 complement of skills and talent that  
 we have within our executive team   
 we are assured that the port is   
 being operated, maintained and   
 controlled to a very high standard   
 and that best practice is being   
 applied at all times. The team are all  
 strong exponents of the Trust Port 
 model and have witnessed the   
 benefits of its strategic long-term   
 view. They also share the Board’s   
 vision for Aberdeen Harbour to   
 remain a major, commercially   
 successful and sustainable Trust   
 Port, integral to the North East of   
 Scotland’s transport infrastructure   
 and providing an increasingly   
 significant contribution to its   
 economic growth.” 

 Michelle Handforth, Chief Executive

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AT ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD ARE ALL VERY AWARE  

OF THE SIGNIFICANT RESPONSIBILITIES THAT THEY CARRY. REPORTING TO THE BOARD, 

THE DIRECTORS MUST ENSURE THAT ALL PRIMARY FUNCTIONS OF THE PORT ARE 

CARRIED OUT TO THE HIGHEST LEVELS OF PROFICIENCY, PROFESSIONALISM AND 

SAFETY. IT IS FOR THIS REASON THAT ONLY INDIVIDUALS WITH THE RIGHT EXPERIENCE 

AND SKILLS BASE HAVE BEEN SELECTED TO CARRY OUT THIS IMPORTANT ROLE.

The directors also carry the responsibility to ensure that the strategic aims of the Board are 
translated and applied to all harbour operations at every juncture. Michelle Handforth is Chief 
Executive and leads the team of Executive Directors. The responsibilities of this team are broad, 
but at the most basic level, they must ensure that –

> vessels have a safe and navigable place of shelter, and that we encourage safe  
 working practices throughout the port

> the integrity and design of the quays and waterways are kept to the highest  
 engineering standards

> the organisation applies a system of sound financial management and remains 
 commercially successful

> a high level of interaction is maintained with a wide range of harbour stakeholders, 
 including staff members, customers, port users, members of the local community, 
 interest groups, local and regional authorities, industry and civic groups.

Fundamental to the role of a Trust Port  
is engagement with its stakeholders.

Aberdeen Harbour takes advantage  
of many forms of communication to  
ensure its relationship with stakeholders  
is a productive and proactive one. 

These include – 

>  Annual public meeting (June)

>  Stakeholder Christmas lunch (December)

>  Annual review (published in June)

>  Website news and community pages 

>  News articles in local, national, trade and 
    online media

>  Industry publications

>  Community publications

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
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BOARD CONSTITUTION

Aberdeen Harbour Board is an independent statutory authority formed 
under the terms of the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960.  
It is responsible for the administration, maintenance and improvement 
of the port. The Board comprises nine non-executive members and 
two senior officials, appointed by the Board, and the Chief Executive.

BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESS

Appointments of non-executive Board members are based on equal 
opportunities and on merit. Candidates are sought who have a 
complementary range of qualities, competencies and experience.

All vacancies are openly advertised and appointments are made by  
the Board after a process of interviewing and selection, carried out  
by an appointing panel, including independent persons. 

TERMS OF OFFICE

All non-executive members hold office for a term of three years. 
Consideration for reappointment is subject to performance;  
however, a vacating member, other than the Chairman and  
Vice-Chairman, will not be eligible for reappointment if they have 
previously served three consecutive terms (i.e. nine years).

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will not be eligible for  
reappointment as a member if they have held office as a member  
for four consecutive terms (i.e. 12 years).

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members,  
the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman and two non-executive Board 
members. Its principal duties are to consider matters relating to  
staff wages and salaries. The Committee also considers in detail 
items or issues delegated or remitted by the Board, and reports  
back with recommendations or details of actions taken. 

THE AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit & Risk Committee consists of five non-executive Board 
members. Its principal duties are to manage external audits of 
management controls; to review external and internal audit strategy 
and to appoint and manage external auditors; to review annual/
management accounts and financial statements; to monitor the 
performance of the Board’s long-term investments, and to benchmark 
the Board’s corporate governance performance.

THE PROPERTY COMMITTEE

The Property Committee consists of four non-executive Board 
members and its principal duties are to prepare and keep under review 
the estate management strategies relating to the Board’s land and 
property holdings; to consider appropriate opportunities for extending 
the Board’s property portfolio, and to review the appointment, 
performance and fees of the Board’s external property advisors.

     

07 MIKE BOWYER  
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2013

Mike is a Chartered Engineer 
and Chartered Director who 
worked in the oil and gas 
industry for over 40 years, 
holding senior executive 
positions with several 
companies. He is a past Chair 
of the Aberdeen branch of the 
Institute of Directors and also 
served as a board member of 
Oil & Gas UK and Acona AS.

08 CHRIS BAIN 
External Relations Director  
Board member since 2014

Chris began her career in 
helicopter and marine logistics 
in 1994, later working as a 
Logistics Manager with 
Petrofac, Dubai Petroleum and 
Ras Al Khaimah Petroleum. 
She joined the Aberdeen 
Harbour Board Executive  
in 2013 and is also on the  
AGCC Board.

09 MIKE PORTER 
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2015

Mike has over 30 years’ 
experience in the provision  
of logistics, marine and 
integrated supply base 
solutions to the offshore 
energy sector. He has held 
several leadership positions 
with prominent contractors, 
latterly as Chief Operating 
Officer of Peterson prior to 
joining the Harbour Board in 
January 2015.

10 JAYNE 
MACLENNAN 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2017

Jayne was Group Director  
at FirstGroup PLC and now has 
a portfolio career as a 
consultant, executive coach 
and a number of non-executive 
board roles including LocatED 
and Glasgow Prestwick 
Airport. She is also Chair of 
the LionHeart Benevolent Fund 
and a trustee of the Scottish 
Association of Mental Health.  

11 JOHN BREBNER  
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2018

John holds various executive 
and non-executive roles, 
including President of AGCC, 
as well as undertaking project 
based advisory work. This 
follows a 34-year career with 
Clydesdale Bank where he 
undertook various senior roles, 
latterly Head of Regional 
Business & Private Banking 
Centre – East Scotland and 
Regional Head of Specialist  
& Acquisition Finance – North 
of Scotland.

12 MORAG McNEILL 
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2013

Morag is a solicitor and was  
a partner in McGrigors LLP 
before joining Forth Ports PLC 
as General Counsel.   
Morag has a portfolio of 
non-executive directorships, 
including Caledonian 
Maritime Assets Ltd and 
Scottish Event Campus,  
and is a trustee of a number 
of charities. She is also a 
member of court at 
Heriot-Watt University.  

01 ALISTAIR   
MACKENZIE 
Chairman  
Board member since 2010

Alistair has worked in 
Aberdeen’s energy industry  
for more than 20 years holding 
senior positions in both  
oil operator and service 
organisations. He is an  
owner/director of Mentor 
Aviation Services Ltd.   
Alistair is also a Commissioner 
of the Northern Lighthouse 
Board since 2009.

02 HOWARD 
WOODCOCK 
Vice-Chairman 
Board member since 2012

Howard has been involved  
in shipping and marine 
businesses for 30 years.   
He has been Chief Executive 
of Bibby Offshore Holdings 
Limited since 2005 and has 
also helped with the 
fundraising for a number of 
local organisations, including 
Cornerstone and Absafe.

03 MICHELLE 
HANDFORTH 
Chief Executive 
Board member since 2018

Michelle has held leadership 
roles in several business sectors 
including aviation, rail, maritime, 
financial services and the oil 
and gas industry. Until recently, 
she was the Managing 
Director of Babcock Offshore 
Helicopters based in Aberdeen. 
She has served on the board 
of various companies, and was 
at one point General Manager 
for Sydney Ferries based in 
Sydney, Australia.

04 LUISA CAMPBELL 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2017

Luisa is the Managing Director 
of William Wilson Limited, 
which is part of Wolseley UK.  
Until recently she also held 
the role of Regional Trading 
Director of Plumb Centre for 
Scotland and Northern Ireland. 
Luisa has been with William 
Wilson for 25 years and 
oversees the operation of  
23 branches across Scotland. 
In addition, she is a trustee  
of a charity in Clydebank.

05 TONY STRACHAN 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2013

Tony is a fellow of the Institute 
of Chartered Secretaries and 
Administrators. Between  
2003 and 2010 he served  
as the Bank of England’s 
representative in Scotland.  
He is Deputy Chair at  
Herriot-Watt University  
and also Chair of its 
Remuneration Committee. 

06 JAMES BELL 
Finance Director  
Board member since 2011

James joined Aberdeen 
Harbour Board in 2009 from 
Caledonian Brewery, where  
he had been head of finance 
since 2002. He trained with 
Bird Simpson Chartered 
Accountants and has worked 
with Meston Reid and Diageo. 
James is also Chairman of  
the finance group of British 
Ports Association, which was 
initiated in 2010.
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BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE 2017

Board 
Meetings

Remuneration 
Committee

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Property 
Committee

NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Alistair Mackenzie (Chairman) 8 of 8 1 of 1 N/A N/A

Howard Woodcock (Vice-Chairman) 8 of 8 1 of 1 N/A 4 of 4

Mike Bowyer 7 of 8 1 of 1 4 of 4 N/A

Luisa Campbell 8 of 8 1 of 1 4 of 4 N/A

Malcolm Laing 7 of 8 N/A 4 of 4 N/A

Jayne MacLennan 7 of 8 N/A N/A 4 of 4

Mike Porter 8 of 8 N/A N/A 3 of 4

Morag McNeill 8 of 8 N/A 4 of 4 3 of 4

Tony Strachan 8 of 8 N/A 4 of 4 N/A

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Colin Parker (Chief Executive) 8 of 8 1 of 1 3 of 4 N/A

Chris Bain (External Relations Director) 8 of 8 N/A N/A N/A

James Bell (Finance Director) 8 of 8 1 of 1 4 of 4 N/A

OUR BOARD

02
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Operating Success

Along with other businesses, Aberdeen 
Harbour has had to ride out the storm that 
has buffeted the North East economy in  
the last three years. In the main, the 
organisation has weathered this well, and  
our 2017 results are encouraging. 

The first increase in vessel arrival numbers 
since 2014 was welcomed by all, with 6,775 
vessels entering the port in 2017, whilst both 
vessel and cargo tonnage figures (24.9 million 
and 3.8 million respectively) remained stable 
with only very minor decreases.

Commodities on the move

Success stories include a 22% increase in 
pipe exports and a 10% increase in food 
product exports, the majority of which were 
to the Northern Isles. This route also saw a 
4% increase in vehicle movements.

Scotland’s first harsh winter for several years 
resulted in a 20% increase in road salt imports 
compared with 2016, and 32,000 tonnes of 
the product transited through the port in 
January alone, all bound for North East roads. 

Vessels of scale

It was also another year when the trend  
for ever-increasing vessel sizes was all the 
more apparent. July saw the arrival of 
Technip’s new Deep Explorer, a DP3 dive 
support vessel of 19,290 gross tonnes.  
This was followed up by a visit by the  
16,171 gross tonne NKT Victoria, a Norwegian 
cable laying vessel, which was visiting the 
port during its maiden season.

Despite focus upon the Harbour Expansion Programme, Aberdeen Harbour Board continues to set new goals  
and ambitions for the existing harbour. Much is being done to ensure that our existing customers continue  
to be provided with excellent service and ever-improving facilities, whilst we continue to connect with  
potential new customers and markets, attracted to the port due to its modern facilities and strategic location.

Mega movers

The port has also witnessed an increase 
in large scale cargo work. Two subsea 
mid-water arches, weighing around 100 
tonnes each, were just some of the items 
that were landed as part of nine shipments  
to the port in support for Maersk Oil’s 
decommissioning campaign for the James, 
Janice, Affleck and Leadon fields, which  
took place throughout the summer.

History was made in August when a massive 
pressure test chamber was landed at Pacific 
Quay bound for the new Balmoral Subsea 
Test Centre on Wellington Road. 

The 285-tonne load was the largest lift to be 
carried out in Aberdeen Harbour, whilst the 
420-tonne combined weight of the chamber 
and its transportation vehicle was too heavy 

to pass over the Queen Elizabeth Bridge. 
Remarkably, the Victoria Bridge, built in  
1881, was more than up to the job – a real 
tribute to Victorian architecture. 

Aberdeen Harbour’s status as the principal  
oil & gas marine support base remains 
undiminished despite the industry’s recent 
challenges, and the introduction of South 
Harbour in 2020 will only serve to augment 
this position. Although welcoming 
diversification, oil & gas activity remains at 
the heart of Aberdeen Harbour’s strategy 
going forward and our oil & gas customers 
are key stakeholders in this journey.

A PLATFORM  
FOR SUCCESS
A new feature of Commercial 
Quay West took form early in 
2018 as Vattenfall completed 
construction of a 30 metres x 6 
metres floating pontoon. 

The pontoon has been constructed 
as part of a 24-year agreement 
between Aberdeen Harbour Board 
and Vattenfall. Initially it will be 
used to support construction of  
the Aberdeen Offshore Windfarm 
(EOWDC), and subsequently to act 
as a marine support base for its 
on-going maintenance programme.

We are delighted to be providing  
a marine support base for this  
important development, and this  
initiative represents the port’s first 
long-term agreement in support of 
an offshore-wind project. We hope 
we will provide increasing support 
for this market and to benefit from 
other such diversification opportunities. 
We look forward to a long and  
productive relationship with Vattenfall.”

Matt North,  
Aberdeen Harbour Commercial Director

“ 



2017: AT A GLANCE
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STANDBY SAFETY 
VESSELS

CARGO VESSELS

TANKERS

PASSENGER &  
FREIGHT FERRIES

OFFSHORE VESSELS
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VESSELS
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1,128

6,775

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 
VESSELS

TOTAL VISITS

CRUISE VESSELS

YACHTS

VESSEL ARRIVALS

ACTS OF PILOTAGE

5,081
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NUMBER OF 
CHARITIES 
SPONSORED

18

LONGEST VESSEL

168m

£7,231,000

WIDEST 
VESSEL

31m

37 SHIPPING 
CONNECTIONS 2017

143,703

94  
EMPLOYEES

ANGOLA  AUSTRALIA  AZERBAIJAN  BELGIUM  BENIN  CAMEROON  CANADA 
CONGO (DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC)  CYPRUS  DENMARK  EGYPT  EQUATORIAL GUINEA   
FRANCE  GABON  GERMANY  GHANA  GREECE  INDIA  IRISH REPUBLIC  ISRAEL  ITALY   
IVORY COAST  JAPAN  MALTA  MAURITANIA  MEXICO  NIGERIA  NORWAY  POLAND  
PORTUGAL  RUSSIA  SENEGAL  SPAIN  SWEDEN  THE NETHERLANDS  TRINIDAD  USA

GVA
1.5b

INDIRECT EQUIVALENT 
JOBS SUPPORTED

12,000 

CRUISE 
PASSENGERS

2,267

TOTAL QUAY 
LENGTH
5,900m EXISTING HARBOUR

7,300m INC. SOUTH HARBOUR

FISHING VESSELS

BIGGEST 
SINGLE VESSEL 
GROSS TONNAGE

20,643 
TONNES

RO-RO RAMPS

03
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RAIL 
CONNECTIONS

BENEFIT

FERRY 
PASSENGERS

STAKEHOLDER

SCOTTISH  
GOVERNMENT  
NATIONAL  
PLANNING 
FRAMEWORK  
PROJECTS

DIVE SUPPORT VESSELS

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

PORT 
JURISDICTION

38.8km²
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         review of the first 12 months of  
         construction reveals that Aberdeen 
Harbour Board’s principal contractor, 
Dragados UK, has made significant 
progress. This includes the establishment  
of site compounds and services, the 
construction of over 200 metres of North 
Breakwater, the dredging of almost 
190,000 cubic metres of material from the 
bay, in our quest to create the deep-water 
requirement for the larger vessels that  
will visit the new facilities, and even early 
investigative work on the North Quay,  
in the form of a causeway structure.

Completion of the Accropode Manufacturing 

Facility, which is now a well-recognised 

fixture on the Gregness skyline, will allow  

the local manufacture of over 9,000 

accropodes, which will weigh up to 36 tonnes 

each. The accropodes will act as the outer 

layer of protection for both breakwaters.

2018 will not only witness continued work on 

the North Breakwater, and commencement  

of activities on the South Breakwater, but it  

will also see the arrival of the first of the large 

50-metre-long caissons, which will form the 

building blocks of the port’s closed quay. 

These units will be floated into the bay, 

before being guided into place with precision. 

This will be a significant event in the 

construction calendar to date, as it will 

represent the first real step in the construction 

of the inner harbour itself, where vessels will 

tie-up for many decades to come.

The focus of both Aberdeen Harbour Board 

and Dragados UK, however, has not been on 

construction alone. Both organisations are 

committed to ensuring that local communities, 

the city and the region don’t have to await the 

completion of this significant project to reap 

the benefits. The Project Visitor Centre 

opened in January 2018, providing the public 

with a birds-eye, real time view of the project, 

whilst also providing a range of information  

on the project, the harbour and the history of 

the area. School parties, local interest groups 

and industry bodies are also frequent visitors 

to the centre where, amongst other initiatives, 

guests are invited to suggest items to be 

included in the project time capsule, which is 

to be buried within the harbour foundations 

in 2020, and, it is hoped, will be retrieved in 

100 years’ time.

The Visitor Centre, however, heads up a 

whole range of community benefit measures 

associated with the project, including a 

Project Ambassador Programme, a Fund and 

Timebank for local charities and community 

organisations, a range of local amenity 

measures, including the creation of a cycle 

path, look-out points on the coastal path and 

outdoor classrooms for local schools to  

use as a base for study and teaching. All of 

these measures are described on page 20  

of this review, providing greater detail as to 

their implementation.

South Harbour: Taking Shape
The fruits of over seven years of intense planning, investigation and public engagement have 
finally taken physical form within the Nigg Bay landscape, as early construction phases of  
this visionary project become visible. 
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May 2017: Construction commenced

May 2017: Works commenced on 
 North Breakwater

Sep 2017:  Dredging commenced

Jun 2018:  Works to commence on 
 South Breakwater

Jul 2018:  Works to commence on West Quay

Feb 2019:  Works to commence on East 
 and North Quay

Jun 2019:  West Quay to be completed  

Oct 2019:  North Breakwater to be completed

Nov 2019:  South Breakwater to be completed

Jan 2020:  East and North Quay to be completed

May 2020:  Construction to be completed 

CONSTRUCTION 
PROGRAMME TIMETABLE

01. North Breakwater
02. Accropode Manufacturing  
 Facility
03. Compound and North  
 Quay Causeway

QUARRY MATERIAL 
1,660,359 cubic metres
(enough to build ¾ of  
Hadrian’s Wall)

ACCROPODES 
10,500
(side by side would reach 
Stonehaven from Aberdeen)

CONCRETE 
128,500 cubic metres
(almost two and a half times 
the concrete used to build  
The Shard)

PILING 
4,137 metres
(put on top of one another  
they would be three times  
the height of Ben Nevis)

DREDGING OF  
SAND, GLACIAL TILL 
AND ROCK 
2,791,000 cubic metres
(the same volume as the Great 
Pyramid of Giza (Kheops))

01

02

03



Huge Capacity for Growth
THE DIMENSIONS OF THE NEW SOUTH HARBOUR WILL BE TRANSFORMATIONAL, UP-SCALING 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR EXISTING CUSTOMERS, WHILST OPENING THE DOOR TO NEW MARKETS  

THAT COULD NEVER HAVE BEEN CONSIDERED BEFORE. 

From its very design conception, scale has been a key factor in Aberdeen Harbour Board’s plans for expansion. All that was  

possible has been done to design a facility that will be able accommodate the larger vessels that have become commonplace  

on sea routes around the world. 

The ability to welcome such vessels future-proofs the harbour’s ability to support the economic prosperity of the city and region it  

serves in a unique way.

That the industries these vessels serve are space-hungry has also been acknowledged, and a vast laydown area embraces the hundreds  

of metres of new quay, supported by state-of-the-art facilities and an incredible suite of service providers and vendors – all adjacent to 

a city that hosts one of the most comprehensive supply-chains in Europe. Combined with the existing port, Aberdeen Harbour will soon  

become the largest port in Scotland in terms of berthage, and one of the most tidally unrestricted.

WATER DEPTH
Aberdeen Harbour has a tidal range of 5.5m, and at Mean High Water Spring Tides (MHWST)  
the South Harbour Quays will provide up to 14.2 metres of water depth.
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With a 165m wide channel, 300 metre turning circle and  
quays of up to 540 metres in length, South Harbour’s ability  
to accommodate the ongoing trend for larger vessels across  
a whole range of industries is clear. 

The new facilities will provide an incredible 125,000m of  
laydown area and 1,400 metres of new quay. The design of  
the quay access road optimises uninterrupted working  
areas, whilst allowing direct access. 

Aberdeen Harbour is not only home to the most expansive  
suite of marine service providers, it is also designed for fast 
turn-arounds, with towage support, fully-serviced berths  
and tidally unrestricted quays. All designed to provide time  
efficiencies for our customers.

ONE-STOP-SHOP

QUAY DIMENSIONS

VESSEL CAPACITY

300 metres
MAX VESSEL LENGTH

TOWAGE 
SUPPORT 
AVAILABLE

TOTAL QUAY 
AVAILABIL ITY

1,400m

FULLY SERVICED
BERTHS

WATER FUEL

45m

BEAM
MAX

LAYDOWN AREA 
125,000m2

BREAKWATERS
The two breakwaters laid 
on top of each other 
(1,375m) would measure 
taller than Ben Nevis.

QUAY LENGTH 
All the new quay laid end 
to end (1,400m) would be 
longer than Union Street.

TRANSFER WEIGHT 
The transfer weight 
capacity of the quay will 
be up to 6,000 tonnes – 
the equivalent weight  
of 80 space shuttles.

HARBOUR FOOTPRINT 
The new port jurisdiction 
area of the harbour  
will be 38.8km² – almost 
15 square miles.

SOUTH HARBOUR: 



SOUTH HARBOUR: CONTROL TO OUR CUSTOMERS

South Harbour will, for the first time, allow Aberdeen, the natural home of oil and gas support services in Scotland,  

to compete in terms of providing facilities capable of handling vessels and projects of significant size. For customers  

with project work on their minds, however, it is not just scale that South Harbour will offer.
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HEAVY LIFT AREAS KEY:
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CHANNEL
WIDTH: 165m

DEPTH: 10.5 LAT

125,000m2 OF LAYDOWN AREA 
WHICH CAN BE SPLIT INTO 

INDEPENDENT WORKING ZONES

ZONE 12
(3,200m2) 

ZONE 13
(6,200m2) 

ZONE 14
(8,600m2) 

ZONE 8
(5,600m2) 

ZONE 9
(6,600m2) 

ZONE 10
(7,500m2) 

ZONE 11
(6,700m2) 

ZONE 3
(14,500m2) 

ZONE 2
(8,600m2) 

ZONE 1
(11,000m2) 

ZONE 4
(8,400m2) 

ZONE 5
(8,300m2) 

ZONE 6
(9,800m2) 

ZONE 7
(10,400m2) 

ABERDEEN SOUTH HARBOUR:
CAPACITY FOR INDEPENDENT

WORKING ZONES

BACK OF QUAY
PROJECT AREAS

Through the inclusion of state-of-the-art drainage systems and 

interceptors, South Harbour will be unique in its ability to 

segregate the working quay into independent, dedicated zones, 

allowing the customer to 'lock-down' their activities, in a physical  

and regulatory sense. This modular/scalable approach also 

provides our customers with the ability to define the size of 

working area they require, bringing natural cost savings and 

efficiencies to their shoreside project operations. We believe  

that this tailored approach will revolutionise the way in which 

quayside project work, supporting a range of activities including 

decommissioning, will evolve.

A REVOLUTION IN MODULAR THINKING

We believe that our 

customers should have 

complete choice in the 

project partners they select, 

and so Aberdeen Harbour 

supports all of its customers, 

but favours none.

Choose your own
Partner

SEGREGATED, DEDICATED 

PROJECT AREAS,  

WITH SPECIALIST  

DRAINAGE SYSTEMS

VAST HEAVY LIFT  

ZONES AND TRANSFER 

CAPACITY OF  

6,000 TONNES

SIGNIFICANT REVERSE 

ENGINEERING 

DECOMMISSIONING 

CAPACITY

ONE-STOP-SHOP TO 

IMPORT, PROCESS 

LOCALLY, AND EXPORT BY 

SEA OR BY TRUNK ROAD

LIFTING CAPABILITIES

Our Engineers are predicting a transfer 
capability of over 6,000 tonnes within  
the new facility, whilst instead of having 
just heavy-lift pads, South Harbour will 
provide sizeable heavy-lift zones.   
5 tonnes per square meter will represent 
the minimum load capacity within the 
port, the majority of quay (67,000 square 
meters) will accommodate 10 tonnes per 
square meter, and 36,000 square meters 
of quayside will accommodate a  
15 tonnes per square meter capability.



EDUCATION, LOCAL TRAINING & EMPLOYMENT 

One of the most rewarding community benefits that can be employed is contributing to the 

knowledge of local schoolchildren and students. Almost daily, the Visitor Centre hosts visits  

from school parties, where children are learning about a range of topics such as international 

shipping, how harbours work and how they are linked with some of our basic needs such as  

fuel for petrol stations, heating oil and road salt, all of which are imported through the existing 

harbour. Students can also learn about the advanced civil and marine engineering techniques  

that are being applied during construction of South Harbour.

The construction project has also provided an opportunity for local employment. The workforce on  

the project will peak at around 250, employing a wide range of local subcontractors and personnel.  

Dragados UK also implemented a Community Ambassador Programme, which offers training and  

volunteer work placements to unemployed and unoccupied people living in the area and is designed  

to enhance their employability experience and support their job-seeking aims.

COMMUNITY FUND & TIMEBANK 

Dragados was keen to provide a benefit that was direct in its nature for the local community. It therefore 

launched both the Community Investment Fund and Timebank in the summer of 2017. The Investment  

Fund involves Dragados UK sharing £70,000 amongst local charities and groups to support community-based 

projects, whilst the Timebank involves Dragados UK and its subcontractors offering 100 days of their  

support and advice per year to local charities and groups. The first round of sponsorship awards from the 

Community Investment Fund were made in 2017 to seven different community groups, which were –

> Alcohol & Drugs Action 

> Greyhope Bay Ltd 

> Royal Northern Countryside Initiative (RNCI) 

> Sistema / Big Noise Torry 

> Torry Community Group 

> Torry Memories & Heritage Society  

> VictoriArt Road

COMMUNICATION & CONSIDERATE CONSTRUCTORS SCHEME 

Communication with the local community during a construction project of this scale is vital. 

Dragados has employed a range of tools to allow this flow of information to happen. These include  

a project website (www.ahep.co.uk), a quarterly newsletter, a telephone hotline and email address, 

and attendance at a range of community meetings.

Dragados UK and the Aberdeen Harbour expansion plan is also a registered site under the Considerate 

Constructors Scheme, and therefore is being independently monitored to ensure they fulfil a series  

of good practices, including caring about the appearance of the work site, respecting the community,  

protecting the environment, securing everyone’s safety and valuing the workforce.

SOUTH HARBOUR: 
COMMUNITY BENEFITS

TimeBank

Visitor Centre at Walker Park

COMMUNITY BENEFIT 
STEERING GROUP

> Aberdeen City Council

> Aberdeen Harbour Board

> Aberdeen Council of 

 Voluntary Organisations

> Construction Industry 

 Training Board

> Dragados UK

> North East Scotland College

> Skills Development Scotland

AMENITY IMPROVEMENTS

In conjunction with Aberdeen 
City Council a range of amenity 
improvements have been 
planned, in association with the 
South Harbour Development. 
Some of these are permanent 
improvements, such as new play 
facilities for St Fitticks Park, 
whilst some are temporary,  
such as the project Visitor Centre, 
which opened in January. 

(For opening times visit AHEP.com)

AMENITY IMPROVEMENTS

> Temporary Visitor Centre

> St Fittick’s Park

 – Landscaping

 – Access improvements

 – New play facilities

> St Fittick’s Church landscape  
 enhancement

> Coastal viewpoints

> Information boards

> Coastal footpath and 
 cycle path

> Outdoor classrooms
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represents. Workshops with local businesses 

were carried out throughout 2017, and a 

Business Opportunities Guide was produced 

(Can be found at http://www.aberdeen-

harbour.co.uk/about-us/reports-documents). 

This work will continue to ensure that the 

visitor experience of those arriving into 

Aberdeen by cruise vessel is second to none. 

CruiseAberdeenshire is all too aware that 

cruise companies will visit Aberdeen because 

it is a new destination, but they will only keep 

coming back if it is an excellent one.

As Scotland is seen as an increasingly  

safe tourism destination compared with 

many of the more traditional tourism 

destinations around the globe, and 

Scottish history and culture are enjoying 

an explosion of popularity thanks to a 

range of TV series and films, the growth in 

cruise activity in the country has soared, 

with passenger numbers more than 

tripling since the national body, 

CruiseScotland was formed in 2010.

Aberdeen Harbour has also enjoyed an even 

greater percentage increase in cruise activity 

during this period, with 26 cruise vessel visits 

in 2017. Locals will know, however, that this 

figure is a little misleading in that it refers to 

the number of smaller, high-end expedition 

cruise vessels that are able to access the 

current harbour, and passenger numbers 

visiting the region via the port were just over 

2,200 in 2017, compared with other popular 

Scottish ports, which regularly welcome  

more than 100,000 passengers every year.

What South Harbour will do is to open up the 

city and region to the larger 250-metre-plus 

vessels that have, until now, been sailing past 

Aberdeen to call at alternative East coast 

ports, including harbours on the Forth,  

the Cromarty Firth and the Northern Isles.  

This will have a significant effect on cruise  

call numbers to the port – but will be truly 

transformational in terms of passenger 

numbers. These larger vessels can 

accommodate up to 3,500 passengers each, 

which is a far cry from the hundred or so 

passengers that our current visiting cruise 

vessels can each accommodate.

To ensure that all of us, including the port, 

transport providers, retail outlets and visitor 

attractions, will be ‘cruise-ready’ in 2020 and 

beyond is the aim of CruiseAberdeenshire,  

a newly-formed body that includes 

representatives from Aberdeen Harbour 

Board, VisitAberdeenshire, Scottish 

Enterprise, and both city and shire councils, 

amongst others. The aim of this body is to 

maximise the cruise activity opportunity for 

the city and region that South Harbour

Few would have predicted just 10 years ago that, by 2018, Scotland would be 
experiencing more than 800,000 cruise passenger calls to its ports, and yet this  
is what is being forecast for this season.

SOUTH HARBOUR: 
Preparing the Way for Cruise

NUMBER  
OF CRUISE  
PASSENGERS

>24 million

$117 billion

CRUISE SHIPS IN SERVICE 
GLOBALLY 475

New ships 
scheduled  
to come  
into service 
by 2022 70

GLOBAL ANNUAL CRUISE  
MARKET VALUE

£72 million
VALUE OF PASSENGER  
SPEND TO SCOTLAND

ANTICIPATED PASSENGER 
NUMBERS FOR SCOTLAND 2018

822,089

Anticipated cruise 
vessel calls to 
Scotland 2018 812

GROWTH IN PASSENGER  
NUMBERS TO SCOTLAND 
SINCE 2010

145%

GLOBAL
CRUISE FACTS 

SCOTLAND
CRUISE FACTS



ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD AND NESCOL PHOTOGRAPHY COMPETITION

Chris Foy

Chief Executive, 
VisitAberdeenshire

THE JUDGES

Russell Borthwick

Chief Executive, Aberdeen & 
Grampian Chamber of Commerce

Steve Smith

Photography Lecturer, 
North East Scotland College

Claire Cormack

Graphic Designer/Owner,  
RavenRed

WHAT MAKES US CLICK
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Chis Bain

External Relations Director,  
Aberdeen Harbour

Aberdeen Harbour’s links with 
photography stretch back to the 1880s, 
when the technology was in its infancy. 
Not only did the Harbour Board take 
photographs in order to record its 
technical developments, such as the 

building of new quays, but both amateur 
and professional photographers also 
photographed the activities that took 
place in the harbour, including fantastic 
images of people who worked there.  
This means that we now have an 
incredible social record contained in 
images of the harbour, which stretch  
back over many decades.

And it is this link with the medium of 

photography that Aberdeen Harbour Board 

was keen to continue when, in 2016, in 

conjunction with North East Scotland College 

(NESCOL), we launched the first of the 

Aberdeen Harbour photography competitions.

The competition has grown since then,  
both in terms of entries submitted, and in 
terms of categories available. The competition 
had more than 300 entries in 2017.

In 2017 the judges included Chris Foy,  
Chief Executive of VisitAberdeenshire,  
Russell Borthwick, Chief Executive of the 
Aberdeen & Grampian Chamber of 
Commerce, Steven Smith, Photographer  
and Lecturer at North East Scotland College, 
prominent graphic designer Claire Cormack, 
and Chris Bain, External Relations Director 
of Aberdeen Harbour Board.

Prizewinning images from the competition 
have been used widely, adorning covers of

the Harbour’s Annual Review,  

forming the basis of Aberdeen Harbour 

Board Calendars and used throughout 

company presentations and webpages. 

The intention is to make future 

prizewinning images available to 

VisitAberdeenshire, so that these 

wonderful images can be used to 

celebrate the city and region in all of  

its glory, and the work of these 

wonderful photographers appreciated 

by a wider audience. 

Excitingly, the 2018 judges will include 

Colin Prior, one of the world's greatest 

landscape photographers.



COMMUNITY 
ACTION FUND

        s soon as we received our first 

        feedback reports from the groups  

we were sponsoring, and began to get an 

insight into the incredible work that is  

being done within our local communities, 

however, the Board’s feelings about the  

fund became much more personal. 

The commitment and passion shown by local 

people to help one another was inspiring to  

see, and served to strengthen the Board’s 

commitment to continued community funding 

going forwards.

Now entering our fifth year of the Community 

Action Fund this perception is undiminished. 

Each year that we add new charities to our 

sponsorship programme, to the point that  

we have supported 40 different community 

groups and charities since the fund's 

inception, providing £469,000 of support.  

We hear more incredible stories of what the 

heroes of the third sector achieve every day, 

often in very difficult circumstances.

Aberdeen Harbour Board is fully committed  

to its Community Action Fund, and would 

like thank all of those involved with our 

sponsored charities for the work that they do.

If the Aberdeen Harbour Board Community 

Action Fund has made the mammoth task 

facing third sector volunteers and 

professionals any easier, then our efforts  

will have been fully rewarded.

Honouring our Commitment

When Aberdeen Harbour Board originally launched its Community Action Fund back in 2013,  
it reflected a genuine commitment by the Board to honour our Trust Port responsibility to our 
stakeholders, of which local community groups and charities play such a central role.

A   

Aberdeen Football Club Community Trust

Aberdeen Kayak Club

Aberdeen Seafarers Centre

Aberdeen YMCA

Altens Community Centre

Alzheimer Scotland

Balnagask Community Centre

Befriend a Child

Big Noise Torry

CLAN Cancer Support

Community Food Initiatives North East

Cornerstone

Dee Catchment Partnership

Denis Law Legacy Trust Streetsport

Friends of Duthie Park

Friends of Seaton Park

Footdee Playpark Charity

Grampian Autistic Society

Greyhope Bay Project

Hayfield Equiworld Club

Hazlehead Parkrun

Inchgarth Community Centre

Instant Neighbour

Kids at Ferryhill

Kincorth/Leggart Community Council

Loirston Annexe Community Centre

Me Too! magazine

Old Torry Community Centre

RSPB Dolphinwatch

Seaton Taking Action for Regeneration (STAR)

Shopmobility

Simeon Care for the Elderly

Sport Aberdeen

Sunnybank Community Centre

Techfest

The ARCHIE Foundation

Torry Development Trust

Transition Extreme Sports

Walker Road Dancers

Walker Road Primary Yearbook

Sponsored Groups Since 2013

£469,000
FUNDING TO DATE



KEY FACTS 2017

Aberdeen Harbour Board continues to be committed to marine safety and to full compliance with the UK Port Marine Safety Code, and recognises its individual and 
collective responsibility as Duty Holders. Aberdeen Harbour Board’s independent Designated Person has presented the Board with audit reports of the Harbour’s Marine 
Safety Management System throughout the year, and a summary of incident reports is available on the Aberdeen Harbour and Marine Safety Forum websites.

ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS 2017

2017 > 2 Staff wellbeing roadshows held

> Security enhancement project implemented 
 physical security improvements

ABERDEEN 
HARBOUR BOARD 
ADVERSE EVENTS  
2017

HS&E 
INSPECTIONS
Carried out by DCO 

12

EXTERNAL 
CERTIFICATION 
AUDITS

02
Carried out by LRQA

HS&E TOURS
Carried out by senior  
management team

23

INTERNAL 
COMPLIANCE 
REVIEWS
Safety, Health and  
Environmental Department

150
ENERGY USAGE

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
INCIDENTS

11

LAND-BASED 
POLLUTION  
INCIDENTS 04 WATER 

POLLUTION
INCIDENTS07

Property Damage

Near Misses

Accidents

Safety Concerns

Reportable Incidents

ELECTRICITYGAS DIESEL

Total: 737, 654 kWh  11.9% DECREASE FROM 2016 Total: 374,231 kWh  5.0% DECREASE FROM 2016 Total: 117, 322 Ltrs  0.8% DECREASE FROM 2016

-50 +50
% DECREASE % INCREASE

0

-50 +50
% DECREASE % INCREASE

0

-50 +50
% DECREASE % INCREASE

0

06
02

11

02
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Health, Safety and 
Environmental Focus
NEW HARBOUR HANDBOOK LAUNCHED

The Aberdeen Harbour handbook provides guidance on health and safety  
for port users working on common user berths within the Harbour estate. 

Its primary objective is to ensure that the undertakings on the Harbour estate  
by users and tenants are safely managed, controlled and coordinated. 

Its aim is to support Aberdeen Harbour Board and its users in its drive to maintain  
and build on the high standard of Health and Safety Management which is  
already well established within the harbour. The handbook includes information  
on how together with our stakeholders we continue to employ safe working 
procedures whilst operating from common user berths.

The handbook is available at  
http://www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk/operations/safety

Seamless 
Transition 
(ISO 14001:2015)

Following a robust audit 
conducted by LRQA, 
Aberdeen Harbour Board 
successfully completed  
its transition to ISO 
14001:2015 standard.

This demonstrates  
Aberdeen Harbour Board's 
commitment to continual 
environmental improvement 
through the reduction of 
waste, more efficient use  
of energy and pollution 
prevention. Our environmental 
performance is pro-actively 
monitored and regularly 
reported to the Board and 
our stakeholders. 

This important work 
helps to preserve the  
unique environment in  
which we operate.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Board presents the Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Review of the business for the year can be found in the Chairman's Statement.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board considers that it operates in an area where there will be ongoing demand for its services. The Board has a strong record of investing in modern facilities, 
plant and equipment and this together with increased training for our employees will enable us to meet the challenges of the future in offering our port customers a 
quality cost effective service. The Board is currently working at addressing current capacity constraints by building a new deep water harbour to the South of the 
current harbour. The contractor, Dragados UK Ltd commenced building works on 1 January 2017 and the project is due for completion in the Summer of 2020.

The current downturn in the Oil & Gas market has impacted on the activity levels in the harbour although the harbour supports a diverse mix of customers and 
businesses and has a demonstrated ability to respond to market changes.

The financial risks were limited to the normal commercial risks associated with running a business. The harbour expansion project will involve the business taking  
debt from the European Investment Bank of up to £175 million.

The Board has agreed fixed interest rates for the full 16 years of the debt on tranches totalling £125 million. There is no currency exposure.

The Board operates a defined benefit pension scheme and also employs two marine pilots who are members of the Pilot's National Pension Fund. These arrangements 
are more fully explained in note 22 to the financial statements.

In the harbour's business, the Board has statutory responsibility for operations in our areas of jurisdiction. 

Any significant business risks identified are reviewed by the Executive Team and the Board to ensure that the designated measures to eliminate or at least mitigate  
the risk are suitable and sufficient.

The Board has compiled a Risk Register which is reviewed in full by the Audit & Risk Committee with the highest risks reviewed by the Board on a six monthly basis.

The Board continues to monitor the current situation regarding the UK Government’s plans to leave the European Union, however, at this stage in the process,  
the impact this may have on future revenues remains unclear.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Financial results

Turnover for the year amounted to £32.6 million, an increase of 1.95% compared to 2016. An operating profit of £15.82 million was earned in 2017 compared to an 
operating profit of £15.88 million in 2016.

The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £22.7 million. As a Trust Port the business retains all profits for reinvestment in harbour developments that will 
benefit the harbour’s stakeholders.

At the year end the Board has a strong balance sheet with net assets of £218 million.

Future developments

The business's plans for the future are focussed on delivering the Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Plan which will provide capacity for larger vessels with 1,400 metres  
of deep water berths supported by 125,000 square metres of lay down area.

Key performance indicators

The annual budget agreed by the Board is the basis for measuring the performance of the business throughout the year. In addition this drives financial and  
non-financial targets for the senior management team. As part of the budgeting process the Board considers the financial projections for a five year time horizon  
with the strategic aim of the business to provide state of the art facilities for its customers and to leave the business in a better condition for future generations.

The KPI's which are used to measure these aspects include:

> Quayside Utilisation – There was a slight drop of 1% per month in quayside utilisation compared to last year. This was consistent with the marginal fall in tonnage  
 of vessels visiting the port. 
> Vessel Movements/Pilotage Acts – There was a 6% fall in the number of full pilotage acts in 2017. The number of exempt pilotage acts increased by 23%   
 highlighting the trend of ships Masters to gain exemptions to reduce operating costs for the ship owners. 
> Income Per Tonne – Vessels – This increased from 50p to 53p in line with the increase in Rates & Charges applied by the business in the year. 
> Income Per Tonne – Goods – This increase from £2.00 to £2.15 partly due to the increase in Rates & Charges but also a reflection of the mix of cargos handled. 
> Debtor Days – The Number of Debtor days has remained unchanged, at 40, from 2016. The Board believe there is adequate control over the collection of debt. 
> EBITDA – Actual v Budget – EBITDA was 3% down on budget for 2017 at £18,508,000, driven by the small reduction in Vessel & Cargo tonnages. 
> Rental Property Occupied – The level of rental property occupied during the year fell by circa 10% compared to 2016. This was reflective of the current market in  
 Aberdeen particularly for office space.

By including EBITDA as a KPI the business aims to monitor the profitability of the business in order that the business generates the necessary funds to re-invest in the 
port infrastructure to ensure appropriate and relevant facilities can be provided for our customers.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
M Handforth 
Chief Executive 
14 May 2018

REPORT OF THE BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Board presents its report with the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Administration, maintenance and improvement of the harbour is entrusted to Aberdeen Harbour Board, an independent statutory body formed under the terms of the 
Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960. Certain modifications to this constitution were embodied in the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1987 and  
the Aberdeen Harbour Revision (Constitution) Order 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Board are the operation and maintenance of the harbour facilities and the provision of services ancillary thereto.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
Review of business for the year can be found in the Chairman's Statement.

BOARD MEMBERS
Other than as set out below board members have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2017 to the date of this report.

Chairman

A Y Mackenzie

Vice-Chairman

H D Woodcock

Members

C Bain  
J Bell  
M L Bowyer  
J Brebner (Appointed 1 January 2018)  
L Campbell (Appointed 1 January 2017) 
M Handforth (Appointed 5 February 2018)  
M D Laing (Demitted office 31 December 2017) 
J MacLennan (Appointed 1 January 2017)  
M McNeill  
C Parker (Demitted office 31 January 2018) 
M A Porter  
A J Strachan 

Principal Officers

M Handforth Chief Executive (Appointed 5 February 2018) 
C Parker Chief Executive (Demitted office 31 January 2018)  
J Bell Finance Director 
Captain J Gaskin Harbour Master 
K D Young Engineering Director 
C Bain External Relations Director 
M J North Commercial Director

BOARD SECRETARY
MacKinnons Solicitors

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY
It is the policy of the Board to pay all verified accounts within agreed settlement terms.

AUDITOR 
The auditors, Johnston Carmichael LLP, will be deemed re-appointed under S487 of the Companies Act 2006.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE TO AUDITOR
So far as each person who was a Board member at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Board’s auditor  
is unaware. Additionally, the Board members individually have taken all necessary steps that they ought to have taken as Board members in order to make themselves 
aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the Board’s auditor is aware of that information.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
MacKinnons Solicitors 
Board secretary 
14 May 2018
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Board is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Report of the Board and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board has elected to prepare the financial statements in 
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Board 
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board and of the profit or loss of  
the Board for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:

>  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

>  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

>  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Board will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at  
any time the financial position of the Board and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the applicable legislation. They are also responsible 
for safeguarding the harbour’s assets and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aberdeen Harbour Board for the year ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account,  
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally  
Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the members of Aberdeen Harbour Board, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours  
Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board’s members those matters we are required  
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other  
than the Board and the Board’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

> give a true and fair view of the state of the Board's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the year then ended;

> have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

> have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the board in accordance with  
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other  
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis  
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

> the Board members' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

> the Board members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Board’s ability to 
 continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with  
 the financial statements; and

> the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS  
OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

  2017  2016  

 Notes £’000  £’000

TURNOVER 3 32,640  32,015

Cost of sales 4 (10,860 ) (10,787)

GROSS PROFIT  21,780  21,228 

Administrative expenses  (5,963 ) (5,345)

OPERATING PROFIT 5 15,817  15,883 

Interest receivable and similar income 9 372  1,692 

Interest payable and similar expenses 8 (250 ) - 

Fair value gains and losses on equity investments  -  1,065  

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets  10,889  - 

Gain on disposal of equity investments  157  -

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  26,985  18,640 

Taxation 10 (4,298 ) (3,645)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 23 22,687  14,995

The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.

  2017  2016  

 Notes £’000  £’000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  22,687  14,995

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 22 7,011  (4,629) 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  (1,192 ) 945

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  5,819  (3,684)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  28,506  11,311

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the board and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements  
in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981 requires 
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

>  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

>  the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

>  certain disclosures of Board members remuneration specified by law are not made; or

>  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Board members

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board set out on page 34, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements  
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Board members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are responsible for assessing the Board's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board members either intend to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted  
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive  
 to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement   
 resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override  
 of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
 purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board members.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a  
 material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the board’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
 that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
 disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,  
 future events or conditions may cause the board to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent  
 the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Jean Main (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of Johnston Carmichael LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditor 
Bishop’s Court, 29 Albyn Place, ABERDEEN  AB10 1YL

14 May 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS  
OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

       Profit and    
  Revaluation   Other  loss   
  reserve   reserves  reserves   Total

  £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2016  4,273   8,036  165,872   178,181 

Year ended 31 December 2016:  

Profit for the year  892   43  14,060   14,995 

Other comprehensive income:   

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans  -   -  (4,629 )  (4,629) 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  -   -  946   946

Total comprehensive income for the year  892   43  10,377   11,312

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2016  5,165   8,079  176,249   189,493

Year ended 31 December 2017: 

Profit for the year  (45 )  195  22,537   22,687 

Other comprehensive income:  

Transfer to profit and loss reserves  (5,120 )  (870 ) 5,990   - 

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans  -   -  7,011   7,011 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  -   -  (1,193 )  (1,193)

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2017  -   7,404  210,594   217,998

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

    2017     2016
 Notes £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

FIXED ASSETS 

Tangible assets       11    138,711     83,064 

Investment properties       12    31,367     32,236 

Investments       13    -     37,654

     170,078     152,954

CURRENT ASSETS 

Stocks       15 74     70  

Debtors falling due after one year       16 2,177     15,515 

Debtors falling due within one year       16 16,851     26,945  

Cash at bank and in hand  49,538     27,380 

  68,640     69,910 

CREDITORS 

Amounts falling due within one year       17 (12,484 )    (31,458 ) 

NET CURRENT ASSETS     56,156     38,452

  

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES     226,234     191,406

CREDITORS 

Amounts falling due after more than one year       17    (13,013 )    (1,657)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES       20    (2,373 )    (869)

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS     210,848     188,880

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SURPLUS       22    7,150     613

NET ASSETS     217,998     189,493

  

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Revaluation reserve       23    -     5,165 

Other reserves       23    7,404     8,079 

Profit and loss reserves       23    210,594     176,249

TOTAL EQUITY     217,998     189,493

  

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 14 May 2018 and signed on its behalf by: 

A Y Mackenzie Chairman  

M Handforth Chief Executive
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Board information

 Aberdeen Harbour Board is a trust port having its principal place of business in Scotland. The main office is 16 Regent Quay, Aberdeen, AB11 5SS.

1.1 Accounting convention

 The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the Board. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to   
 the nearest £000.

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial   
 instruments at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Going concern

 The Board members at the time of approving the financial statements, have a reasonable expectation that the Board has adequate resources to continue in   
 operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.3 Turnover

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received in respect of services provided in the normal course of business stated net of Value Added   
 Tax. Rents receivable are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets

 Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and any impairment losses.

 Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis on the asset costs using asset lives consistent with past practice, subject to a maximum quay life of 40 years.   
 Dredgings are depreciated over a 40 year period. Dock, structures, roads and permanent ways are depreciated over the periods of between 20 and 40 years.  
 Plant and machinery are depreciated on the basis of an economic life of 3 to 20 years depending on the nature of the asset. Floating craft are depreciated over  
 a period of 15 years. Buildings are depreciated over the periods of between 20 and 40 years. Land and capital works in progress are not depreciated.

 Included in capital works in progress are costs of £65.48 million in relation to the Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Project. The Board signed a construction contract   
 with Dragados UK Limited on 20 December 2016 which commenced in January 2017.

1.5 Investment properties

 Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured using the fair value model and stated at its fair value as   
 the reporting end date. The surplus or deficit on revaluation is recognised in the profit and loss account.

1.6 Fixed asset investments

 Investments held as fixed assets are stated at market value. The gains and losses on the fair value of the investments are reported through the profit and loss   
 account. The gains or losses on disposal of investments are reported through the profit and loss account.

1.7 Impairment of fixed assets

 At each reporting end date, the Board reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
 have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the  
 impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Board estimates the recoverable amount of the  
 cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
 their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which  
 the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset  
 (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless the relevant   
 asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

 Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently 
 reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased 
 carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating 
 unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried in at a revalued 
 amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

    2017     2016
 Notes £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 27    19,704     7,478 

Interest paid     (191 )    - 

Income taxes paid     (3,511 )    (3,357)

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     16,002     4,121

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (53,839 )    (1,746 )  

Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed assets  10,896     348 

Proceeds on disposal of investment property  869     - 

Proceeds on disposal of equity investments  37,811     -  

Interest received  419     345 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES     (3,844 )    (1,053)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from new bank loans  10,000     -

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES    10,000     -

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     22,158     3,068 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     27,380     24,312

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     49,538     27,380
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

1.12 Taxation

 The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

 Current tax

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes  
 items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Board’s liability for  
 current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will 
 be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference   
 arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable   
 profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when   
 the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited  
 directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Board has a legally enforceable  
 right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

1.13 Employee benefits

 The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of   
 stock or fixed assets.

 The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.

 Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Board is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to   
 provide termination benefits.

1.14 Leases

 Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other   
 leases are classified as operating leases.

 Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to expenditure on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant  
 lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease asset are consumed.

1.15 Capital investment grants

 Capital investment grants are credited to the profit and loss account over the expected useful lives of the relevant fixed assets.

1.16 Retirement benefits

 The Board operates one defined benefit pension scheme and participates in another (Pilots' National Pension Fund).

 > For the main scheme, in accordance with FRS 102, the service cost of pension provision relating to the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to   
  past service, is charged to operating profit. A charge equal to interest on the scheme liabilities and a credit equivalent to the long-term expected return on   
  assets are included in the profit and loss account under 'Interest Receivable and Similar Income'. The difference between the market value of the scheme and   
  the present value of the accrued pension liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet. Deferred tax is recognised in relation to the timing   
  differences arising on pension costs. Any difference between the net interest on assets and the return actually achieved is recognised in the statement of other  
  comprehensive income along with differences which arise from other experience or assumption changes.

 > The Pilots' National Pension Fund is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution as the Board's ultimate share of assets and liabilities cannot be identified.

 The Board also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the Board's pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account   
 in the period to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or   
 prepayments in the balance sheet.

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

1.8 Stocks

 Stocks are valued at lower of invoice cost on an average cost basis and estimated net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolete stock.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of 
 twelve months or less.

1.10 Financial assets

 The Board has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all 
 of its financial instruments.

 Financial assets are recognised in the Board's balance sheet when the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Financial assets are classified into specified categories. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the 
 time of recognition.

 Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price including transaction 
 costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where 
 the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Other financial assets classified as fair value 
 through profit and loss account are measured at fair value.

 Loans and receivables

 Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and   
 receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

 Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective  
 interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective   
 interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on 
 initial recognition.

 Impairment of financial assets

 Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss account, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting end date.

 Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial   
 asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. The impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

 Derecognition of financial assets

 Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or when the company transfers the   
 financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but   
 control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

1.11 Financial liabilities

 Basic financial liabilities, including loans trade and other payables, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing   
 transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

 Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are   
 classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially  
 at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Derecognition of financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Board’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or they expire.



44   Aberdeen Harbour Board  Annual Review 2018/19 Aberdeen Harbour Board  Annual Review 2018/19   45

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 TURNOVER

An analysis of the Board’s turnover is as follows:

       2017   2016
       £’000   £’000

Turnover   

Dues: on vessels     14,478   13,998 

Dues: on goods     9,052   8,765 

Cranage and weighbridges     197   151 

Storage     489   324 

Rent       5,875   6,235 

Pilotage     2,440   2,449 

Other revenue     109   93

       32,640   32,015

Other significant revenue   

Interest income (net)     372   590 

Dividends receivable (net)     -   1,102

4 COST OF SALES

       2017   2016
       £’000   £’000

Operating and maintenance     8,056   7,752 

Dredging     356   568 

Depreciation (net of grants)     2,441   2,467 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets     7   -

       10,860   10,787

5 OPERATING PROFIT

       2017   2016
       £’000   £’000

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): 

Direct costs of pilotage     2,172   2,034 

Capital investment grants     (5 )  (5) 

Fees payable to the Board’s auditors for the audit of the Board’s annual accounts    27   27 

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets     2,808   2,902 

Profit on disposal of fixed assets     (10,882 )  (313) 

Operating lease charges     385   345

2 JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Board’s accounting policies, the board members are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors 
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate  
is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are outlined below:

Critical judgements

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Useful economic life of fixed assets

Land & Buildings, Dredging, Dock Structures, Plant & Machinery, and Floating Craft are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. Useful lives are based on the 
Board's estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are reviewed annually for continued appropriateness. The carrying values are tested  
for impairment when there is an indication that the value of the assets might be impaired. When carrying out impairment tests, these would be based upon future  
cash flow forecasts and these forecasts would be based upon management judgement. Future events could cause the assumptions to change.

The board members have considered whether or not there were indicators of impairment and concluded that at the balance sheet date none were identified.  
The assessment included both external sources such as the market conditions, and internal sources such as physical damage and obsolescence.

Income taxes

The Board is subject to income taxation in the UK, where judgement arises in determining the provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business,  
there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result, the Board recognise tax liabilities based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes and interest will be due. The Board believes its accruals for tax liabilities and provisions for deferred tax are adequate for all financial years 
based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may 
involve a series of judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences 
will impact on the taxation charge made in the profit and loss account in the period in which such determination is made.

Defined benefit pension schemes

Accounting for pensions and other-post retirement benefits involves judgements about uncertain events including estimated retirement dates, salary levels at 
retirement mortality rates, determination of discount rates for measuring plans obligations and net interest expense and assumptions for inflation rates.

Pension and other post retirement assumptions are reviewed by the Board at the end of each year. These assumptions are used to determine the projected benefit 
obligations at the year end and hence surpluses and deficits are recorded on the Board's balance sheet, and pension and other post-retirement benefit expense for  
the following year.

The assumptions used are provided in note 22.
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8 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:   

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans       250   -

9 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Interest income   

Interest on bank deposits       219   246 

Other interest income       123   125

Total interest revenue       342   371 

            

Other income from investments   

Dividends receivable (net)       -   1,102

         342   1,473 

Other finance income   

Return on pension scheme assets       1,827   2,242 

Interest on pension scheme liabilities       (1,797 )  (2,023)

         30   219

Total interest receivable and similar income       372   1,692

6 EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons (including executive board members) employed by the Board during the year was:

         2017   2016
         Number   Number

Executive Board Member       3   3 

Administrative and Managerial       28   28 

Operating and Maintenance       63   65

         94   96

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Wages and salaries       5,394   5,095 

Social security costs       624   570 

Pension costs       1,992   1,632

         8,010   7,297

7 BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Remuneration for qualifying services       639   621 

Board pension contributions to defined contribution schemes       30   29 

Board pension contributions to defined benefit schemes       52   44

         721   694

The number of Board members for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes amounted to 1 (2016 - 1).

The number of Board members for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes amounted to 1 (2016 - 1). Amount accrued in respect of the 
highest paid Board member at 31 December 2017 was £nil (2016 - £nil).

Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid Board member:

Remuneration for qualifying services       256   247
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11 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

     Docks,       
     Structures,      
   Land and  Roads and    Capital    
   Buildings  Permanent Plant and Floating  Works in 
   Freehold Dredging Way Machinery Craft  Progress Total

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000

COST 

At 1 January 2017 26,243 9,767 90,891 9,166  2,406 7,381  145,854 

Additions - - 6 123  - 58,340  58,469 

Disposals - - - (111 ) - -  (111) 

Transfer between classes 63 - - -  - (63 ) -

At 31 December 2017 26,306 9,767 90,897 9,178 2,406  65,658 204,212

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 

At 1 January 2017 8,599 2,490 42,900 7,371  1,430  - 62,790 

Depreciation charged in the year 325 215 1,764 344  160  - 2,808 

Eliminated in respect of disposals - - - (97 ) -  - (97)

At 31 December 2017 8,924 2,705 44,664 7,618 1,590  - 65,501

CARRYING AMOUNT 

At 31 December 2017 17,382 7,062 46,233 1,560 816  65,658 138,711

At 31 December 2016 17,644 7,277 47,991 1,795 976  7,381 83,064

Included in cost of land and buildings is freehold land of £11,782,959 (2016 - £11,782,959) which is not depreciated.

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

             2017  
             £’000

Fair Value        

At 1 January 2017           32,236 

Disposals           (869) 

At 31 December 2017           31,367

The fair value of the investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at 7 May 2015 by J & E Shepherd Chartered Surveyors,  
who are independent from the Board. The valuation was made on an open market value basis by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar 
properties as at 31 December 2014. The Board has assessed the current market conditions at 31 December 2017 to arrive at their year end valuation.

10 TAXATION

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Current tax   

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period       4,678   3,569 

Adjustments in respect of prior periods       (568 )  -

Total current tax       4,110   3,569

Deferred tax   

Accelerated capital allowances       394   (139) 

Change in value of investment properties       (195 )  (43) 

Realisation of equity investments       45   - 

Change in value of equity investments       -   173 

Unpaid pension contributions       24   83 

Timing differences on pension costs       (80 )  2

Total deferred tax       188   76

Total tax charge       4,298   3,645 

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge for the year based on the profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Profit before taxation       26,985   18,640

Expected tax charge based on a corporation tax rate of 19.25% (2016 - 20.00%)      5,195   3,728 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes       6   6 

Items not deductible for tax purposes       (2,126 )  (521) 

Adjustments in respect of prior years       (567 )  224 

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation       364   - 

Corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior years       374   - 

Adjust deferred tax to average rate       (159 )  208 

Chargeable gains/(losses)       1,053   - 

Other adjustments       158   -

Tax expense for the year       4,298   3,645

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly in other comprehensive income:

         2017   2016
         £’000   £’000

Deferred tax arising on: 

Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income       1,192   (945)
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15 STOCKS

       2017  2016
       £’000  £’000

Stocks      74  70

16 DEBTORS

       2017  2016
       £’000  £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:   

Trade debtors     3,164  2,765 

Other debtors     13,201  23,686 

Prepayments and accrued income     486  494

       16,851  26,945

Amounts falling due after one year:   

Other debtors     747  14,212 

Deferred tax asset (note 20)     1,430  1,303

       2,177  15,515

Total debtors     19,028  42,460

17 CREDITORS

    Due within one year   Due after one year

    2017 2016 2017 2016
   Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Loans and overdrafts 18 - - 10,000 - 

Taxation and social security  2,539 1,919 - - 

Capital investment grants 21 - 5 1,500 - 

Trade creditors  5,121 26,338 - - 

Rent payments received on account  1,100 1,284 - - 

Accruals  671 704 - - 

Other creditors  3,053 1,208 1,513 1,657

    12,484 31,458 13,013 1,657

13 INVESTMENTS

           Fixed Assets

         2017    2016
         £’000    £’000

Listed investments       -    37,654

         -    37,654

Movements in fixed asset investments           Shares  
             £’000

Valuation        

At 1 January 2017           37,654 

Disposals           (37,654)

At 31 December 2017           -

Carrying amount        

At 31 December 2017           -

At 31 December 2016           37,654

Aberdeen Harbour Limited

Aberdeen Harbour Board owns 100% of the issued share capital of Aberdeen Harbour Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland. Aberdeen Harbour Limited is 
engaged in the business of renting out property.

The results of Aberdeen Harbour Limited are not material and therefore group financial statements have not been prepared. For the year ended 31 December 2017,  
the company reported results for the year of £nil and net assets of £1.

The Board charged Aberdeen Harbour Limited £148,301 (2016 - £148,333) for rent and £2,000 in respect to management charges (2016 - £2,000).

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

       2017  2016
       £’000  £’000

Carrying amount of financial assets   

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost     52,703  30,143 

Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss account    -  37,654 

Instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss account     815  875

       53,518  68,672

Carrying amount of financial liabilities   

Measured at fair value through profit and loss account     1,665  1,805 

Measured at amortised cost     19,796  29,382

       21,461  31,187
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21 CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS

       2017  2016
       £’000  £’000

Capital investment grants     1,500  5

       1,500  5

Deferred income is included in the financial statements as follows:

       2017  2016
       £’000  £’000

Current liabilities     -  5 

Non-current liabilities     1,500  -

       1,500  5

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution schemes

The Board operates a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. The amount recognised as an expense in the year was £356,980 (2016 - £290,095).

Defined benefit schemes

The Board operates a defined benefit pension plan for qualifying employees providing benefits based upon final pensionable pay. The pension plan is funded by 
payment of contributions and the assets of the plan are held in a separately administered fund. The fund was closed to new members on the 31 October 2013.

The most recent triennial valuation was carried out at 31 March 2017 and this showed that the market value of the Fund's assets were £69.5 million and that the 
actuarial value of those assets represented 100.1% of the benefits that had accrued to the members after allowing for the expected future increases in earnings.  
The contributions to the scheme are determined by a qualified actuary and in 2017 were £1,139,720 (2016 - £1,117,000).

The Board is also contributing for two current employees to a defined benefit pension plan called the Pilot's National Pension Fund. The PNPF is unusual in that  
the membership of the Fund includes both employed and self employed members. As at 31 December 2016 the valuation of the Fund's assets totalled £326.6 million, 
which represented 66% of the liabilities and resulting in a deficit of £164.8 million. A decision of the courts in June 2010 determined that the Trustees of the PNPF 
could amend the Trust Deed and Rules so that all Competent Harbour Authorities (pilot licensing authorities) whether direct employees or not would have a joint  
and several responsibilities to meet any funding deficit.

The Board's share of the funding deficit based on the Trustee's most recent valuation advice has been estimated at £2.53 million which the Trustees have agreed  
will be payable by monthly instalments over a 16 year period commencing on 1 January 2013. The obligation is included within other creditors at the year end 
measured at its present value of future discounted cash flows.

In accordance with FRS 102, transactions with the PNPF are accounted for as if the Fund were a defined contribution scheme as there is insufficient information 
available to use defined benefit accounting for the multi-employer plan. During the year employer contributions paid to the PNPF amounted to £22,229 (2016 - £19,239). 
These have been included in cost of sales in the profit and loss account.

18 LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS      

      2017 2016
      £’000 £’000

Bank loans    10,000 -

Payable after one year    10,000 -

The long-term loans are secured by a negative pledge over the assets of the Board whereby they cannot pledge their assets as securities against any other loan.

19 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

      2017 2016
   Notes   £’000 £’000

Deferred tax liabilities 20   2,373 869

      2,373 869

20 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Board and movements thereon:

    Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets 

    2017 2016 2017 2016
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balances:   

Accelerated capital allowances  1,158 765 - - 

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end  - - 283 307 

Unrealised loss on investments  - - - 44 

Unrealised loss on investment properties  - - 1,147 952 

Deferred tax on defined pension scheme  1,215 104 - -

    2,373  869 1,430  1,303
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22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefits obligation are as follows:

          2017
          £’000

Liabilities at 1 January 2017        67,448 

Current service cost        1,424 

Interest cost        1,797 

Actuarial losses        (5,212) 

Contributions by scheme members        131 

Benefits paid        (1,814) 

Insurance premiums for risk benefits        (56)

At 31 December 2017        63,718

The Board expects to contribute £1,183,000 to the pension scheme in 2018.

Movements in the fair value of plan assets

          2017
          £’000

Fair value of assets at 1 January 2017        68,061 

Interest income        1,827 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest)        1,799 

Administrative expenses        (219) 

Insurance premiums for risk        (56) 

Contributions by the employer        1,139 

Contributions by scheme members        131 

Benefits paid        (1,814)

At 31 December 2017        70,868

Fair value of plan assets at the reporting period end

       2017   2016  
       £’000   £’000

Equity instruments     19,865   18,418 

Debt instruments     8,814   15,945 

Diversified growth fund     27,239   26,623 

Liability driven investments     14,938   6,937 

Cash and net current assets     12   138

       70,868  68,061

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The principal actuarial assumptions of the Board's defined benefit scheme were as follows:

  2017  2016
  %  %

Discount rate  2.50                            2.70 

Expected rate of salary increases  3.95                            4.05 

Expected rate of increase of pension increases  2.20                            2.30 

Inflation (RPI)  3.20                            3.30 

Inflation (CPI)    2.20                            2.30

The mortality assumptions used for longevity (in years) on retirement at age 65 are:

  2017          2016  
  Years  Years

Retired male member age 65 (current life expectancy)  22.0  22.7 

Retired female member age 65 (current life expectancy)  24.5  25.2 

Non-retired male member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65)  23.7  25.0 

Non-retired female member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65)  25.7                            27.6

Total amounts recognised in the year for the Board's defined benefit pension plan was as follows:

  2017  2016
  £’000  £’000

Current service cost  1,424  1,152 

Net interest on defined benefit (asset)/liability  (30 ) (219) 

Changes in benefits  -  - 

Administrative costs  219  175

Total costs  1,613  1,108

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income

  2017  2016
  £’000  £’000

Effect of changes in assumptions  1,211  (13,597) 

Effect of experience adjustments  4,001  1,056 

Return on plan assets  1,799  7,912

Actuarial gains/(losses)  7,011  (4,629)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet was as follows:

  2017  2016
  £’000  £’000

Present value of defined benefit obligations  (63,718 ) (67,448) 

Fair value of plan assets  70,868  68,061

Total surplus recognised  7,150  613
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of key management personnel 
The remuneration of key management personnel, some of who are also board members, is as follows.  
    2017  2016  
    £’000  £’000

Aggregate compensation    1,033  1,019

No guarantees have been given or received.

27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

      2017  2016    
      £’000  £’000

Profit for the year    22,687  14,995 

Adjustments for:        

Income tax expense    4,298  3,645 

Finance costs    250  - 

Investment income    (372 ) (1,692) 

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets    (10,882 ) (313) 

Fair value gains and losses on investments    -  (1,065) 

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets    2,808  2,902 

Gain on sale of investments    (157 ) - 

Pension scheme non-cash movement    504  210

Movements in working capital:        

(Increase) in stocks    (4 ) (5) 

Decrease/(increase) in debtors    23,480  (35,974) 

(Decrease)/increase in creditors    (24,403 ) 24,780 

Increase/(decrease) in capital investment grants    1,495  (5)

Cash generated from operations      19,704 7,478

23 RESERVES

Profit and loss reserves

The profit and loss account represents cumulative realisable profits and losses.

Equity investment revaluation reserve

The equity investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative effect of revaluations net of deferred tax of listed investments where a policy of revaluation  
has been adopted.

Investment properties revaluation reserve

The investment properties revaluation reserve represents the cumulative effect of revaluations net of deferred tax of investment properties. The reserve has been  
made to separately identify non-distributable profits from distributable profits.

24 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2017 the Board had capital commitments as follows: 
Contracted for but not provided in the Financial Statements: 
 

       2017  2016  
       £’000  £’000

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets     241,808  297,708

25 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Lessee

At the reporting end date the Board had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

       2017  2016     
       £’000  £’000

Within one year     572  511 

Between two and five years     2,281  1,905 

In over five years     58,081  24,942

       60,934  27,358

Lessor

The Board owns 23 (2016 - 24) investment properties for rental purposes. Rental income, including investment property income, earned during the year was £5,875,417 
(2016 - £6,228,000). All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not have an 
option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

At the reporting end date the Board had contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease payments:

       2017  2016     
       £’000  £’000

Within one year     2,129  2,770 

Between two and five years     5,804  7,025 

In over five years     1,608  3,945

       9,541  13,740
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 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Number of vessels 

European Union 2,217 1,627 1,764 1,922 1,670 

Foreign (excl.EU)   186 254 277 324 297 

Offshore Oil 4,292 4,488 5,254 5,601 5,687 

Fishing  55 47 121 83 167 

Cruise 25 22 12 7 13

 6,775 6,438 7,428 7,937 7,834

Tonnage of Vessels (Thousand Gross Tonnes) 

European Union 7,736 7,923 7,822 7,629 8,103 

Foreign (excl. EU)   1,027 1,293 1,537 1,758 1,710 

Offshore Oil 16,031 16,149 18,084 18,675 18,226 

Fishing  6 6 19 10 24 

Cruise 81 89 45 34 61

 24,881 25,460 27,507 28,106 28,124

Traffic Statistics (Thousand Tonnes) 

Goods Inwards 

Commercial Traffic 1,397 1,361 1,496 1,588 1,705 

Offshore Oil Traffic   501 515 541 548 541

 1,898 1,876 2,037 2,136 2,246

Goods Outwards 

Commercial Traffic 550 632 679 753 700 

Offshore Oil Traffic   1,611 1,678 1,800 1,858 1,936

 2,161 2,310 2,479 2,611 2,635

Total Goods Inwards and Outwards   4,059 4,186 4,516 4,747 4,882

Number of Passengers  145,970 151,727 158,226 153,756 155,490

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

    2017     2016
  £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

Turnover 

Dues on vessels     14,478     13,998 

Dues on goods     9,052     8,765 

Rent     5,875     6,235 

Pilotage     2,440     2,449 

Storage     489     324 

Cranage and weighbridge     197     151 

Other revenue     109     93

     32,640     32,015

Cost of sales 

Dredging costs  356     568 

Wages and salaries  3,654     3,630 

Social security costs  438     426 

Staff pension costs  1,592     1,282 

Operating and maintenance  2,372     2,414 

Depreciation  2,441     2,467 

Loss on sale of tangible assets  7     -

     (10,860 )    (10,787 )

Gross profit     21,780     21,228

Administrative expenses     (5,963 )    (5,345 )

Operating profit     15,817     15,883

Investment revenues 

Bank interest received  219     246 

Other interest received on financial instruments  118     125 

Other interest received - not on financial instruments  5     - 

Return on pension scheme assets  1,827     2,242 

Interest on pension scheme liabilities  (1,797 )    (2,023 ) 

Dividends receivable (net)  -     1,102

     372     1,692 

Interest payable and similar expenses   

Bank interest on loans and overdrafts     (250 )    - 

Other gains and losses  

Fair value gains and losses on equity investments  -     1,065   

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets  10,889     - 

Gain on disposal of equity investments  157     - 

     11,046     1,065

Profit before taxation     26,985     18,640
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ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD

16 Regent Quay
Aberdeen
AB11 5SS

t:  +44 (0)1224 597000
e:  info@aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

Heaven 42 is produced from Totally 
Chlorine-Free (TCF) virgin fibre wood 
pulp from sustainable forest sources and 
is FSC Certified in accordance with the 
rules of The Forest Stewardship Council.


